
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Board of Governors of the City of London 
Freemen's School 

 
Date: TUESDAY, 7 OCTOBER 2014 

Time: 11.00 am 

Venue: CITY OF LONDON FREEMEN'S SCHOOL, ASHTEAD PARK, SURREY, 
KT21 1ET 

 
Members: Stuart Fraser (Chairman) 

Roger Chadwick (Deputy Chairman) 
Deputy John Bennett 
Michael Bramwell (External Member) 
Brian Harris 
Alderman Peter Hewitt 
Michael Hudson 
Vivienne Littlechild 
Sir Clive Martin (External Member) 
Andrew McMillan (External Member) 
Douglas Mobsby (External Member) 
Hugh Morris 
Graham Packham 
Alderman Dr Andrew Parmley 
Judith Pleasance 
Elizabeth Rogula 
Deputy Dr Giles Shilson (Ex-Officio Member) 
Sir Michael Snyder (Ex-Officio Member) 
Councillor Chris Townsend (Ex-Officio Member) 
Philip Woodhouse 
Gillian Yarrow (External Member) 
 

 
 
 
Enquiries: Julie Mayer 

tel. no.: 020 7332 1410 
julie.mayer@cityoflondon.gov.uk 

Public Document Pack



AGENDA 
 
 

Part 1 - Public Agenda 
 
1. APOLOGIES 
 
 
2. MEMBERS' DECLARATIONS UNDER THE CODE OF CONDUCT IN RESPECT OF 

ITEMS ON THE AGENDA 
 
 
3. MINUTES 
 To agree the public minutes and summary of the meeting held on 26 June 2014. 
 For Decision 
 (Pages 1 - 6) 

 
4. REVENUE OUTTURN 2013/14 
 Joint report of the Chamberlain and the Headmaster, City of London Freemen’s 

School. 
 For Information 
 (Pages 7 - 18) 

 
5. CHARITIES ADMINISTERED IN CONNECTION WITH (ICW) THE CITY OF 

LONDON FREEMEN'S SCHOOL - 2013/14 - REPORT AND FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS 

 Report of the Chamberlain. 
 For Decision 
 (Pages 19 - 36) 

 
6. CITY OF LONDON FREEMEN'S SCHOOL BURSARY FUND - 2013/14 REPORT 

AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 Report of the Chamberlain.  
 For Decision 
 (Pages 37 - 54) 

 
7. QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE BOARD 
 
 
8. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT 
 
 
9. EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC 
 MOTION - That under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the public 

be excluded from the meeting for the following items of business on the grounds that 
they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in Part I of 
Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act. 

 For Decision 
 
 
 

 



3 
 

Part 2 - Non-Public Agenda 
 

 
10. NON-PUBLIC MINUTES 
 To agree the non-public minutes of the meeting held on 26 June 2014. 
 For Decision 
 (Pages 55 - 60) 

 
11. MASTERPLAN PHASE 1 UPDATE 
 City Surveyor to be heard. 
 For Information 

 
12. MASTERPLAN PHASE 2 (MAIN HOUSE AND SWIMMING POOL) 
 A presentation by Hawkins Brown Architects. 
 For Information 

 
13. SERVICE BASED REVIEW PROPOSALS - CITY OF LONDON FREEMEN'S 

SCHOOL 
 Joint report of the Chamberlain and Headmaster of the City of London Freemen’s 

School. 
 For Decision 
 (Pages 61 - 66) 
14. HEADMASTER'S REPORT 
 Report of the Headmaster of the City of London Freemen’s School  

 
Appendix 1 – School Roll 
Appendix 2 – Survey of CLFS U5 leavers 2014 
Appendix 3 – Examination Results 2014 
Appendix 4 – Teaching staff leavers 2007-2013 
Appendix 5 – Trips/Visits 2014/15 

 For Information 
 (Pages 67 - 88) 
15. HEAD OF JUNIOR SCHOOL REPORT 
 Report of the Head of the Junior School, City of London Freemen’s School 
 For Information 
 (Pages 89 - 96) 
16. BURSAR'S REPORT 
 Report of the Headmaster, City of London Freemen’s School. 

(The Marketing Reports have been circulated separately). 
 For Information 
 (Pages 97 - 106) 

 
17. REPORT OF ACTION TAKEN BETWEEN MEETINGS 
 Report of the Town Clerk. 
 For Information 
 (Pages 107 - 110) 

 
 
 
 



18. NON-PUBLIC QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE 
BOARD 

 
 
19. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT AND 

WHICH THE BOARD AGREES SHOULD BE CONSIDERED WHILST THE PUBLIC 
ARE EXCLUDED 

 
Part 3 - Confidential Agenda 

 
20. GOVERNORS' ONLY ITEM 
 



BOARD OF GOVERNORS OF THE CITY OF LONDON FREEMEN'S SCHOOL 
Thursday, 26 June 2014  

 
Minutes of the meeting of the Board of Governors of the City of London Freemen's 
School held at City of London Freemen's School, Ashtead Park, Surrey, KT21 1ET 

on Thursday, 26 June 2014 at 11.00 am 
 

Present 
 
Members: 
Stuart Fraser (Chairman) 
Deputy John Bennett (Chief Commoner) 
Michael Bramwell (Co-Opted Member) 
Brian Harris 
Michael Hudson 
Vivienne Littlechild 
Sir Clive Martin (Co-Opted Member) 
 

Andrew McMillan (Co-Opted Member) 
Douglas Mobsby (Co-Opted Member) 
Hugh Morris 
Elizabeth Rogula 
Councillor Chris Townsend (Co-Opted 
Member) 
Philip Woodhouse 
 

 
Officers: 
Philip MacDonald 
 

- Headmaster, City of London Freemen's 
School 

Sue Williams 
 
Steve Telling 

- Bursar, City of London Freemen's 
School 

- Chief Accountant, Chamberlain's 
Department 

Mark Lowman - Assistant Director Major Projects, City 
Surveyor’s Department 

Roger Adams - Senior Principal Surveyor, City 
Surveyor's Department 

 
1. APOLOGIES  

Apologies for absence were received from Mr Roger Chadwick, Alderman 
Hewitt, Mr Graham Packham, Alderman Parmley and Ms Judith Pleasance.  
 

2. MEMBERS' DECLARATIONS UNDER THE CODE OF CONDUCT IN 
RESPECT OF ITEMS ON THE AGENDA  
There were no declarations of interest.  
 

3. ORDER OF THE COURT OF COMMON COUNCIL  
The Board received the Order of the Court of Common Council, 1 May 2014, 
appointing the Board of Governors of the City of London Freemen’s School for 
2014/15 and setting its terms of reference.  
 
RESOLVED – That, the Board note the Order of the Court of Common Council.  
 

4. MINUTES  
The public minutes and summary of the last meeting held on 30 April 2014 
were approved and agreed as an accurate record, subject to an amendment to 

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



indicate Mr Michael Bramwell’s attendance at the Board of Governors meeting 
on 30 April 2014. 
 

5. MINUTES OF THE FINANCE, GENERAL PURPOSE AND ESTATES SUB 
COMMITTEE  
The public minutes of the Finance, General Purpose and Estates Sub-
Committee meeting held on 22 May 2014 were received.  
 

6. MINUTES OF THE ACADEMIC AND EDUCATION SUB COMMITTEE  
The public minutes of the Academic and Education Sub-Committee meeting 
held on 22 May 2014 were received.  
 

7. QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE BOARD  
There were no questions relating to the work of the Board. 
 

8. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT  
The Chairman agreed to hold the elections for the positions of Chairman and 
Deputy Chairman and the appointment of Governors to the Boards Sub-
Committees under any other business. 
 
Election of Chairman  
The Board proceeded to elect a Chairman in accordance with Standing Order 
No. 29. 
 
The Town Clerk read a list of those Governors eligible to stand and Stuart 
Fraser, being the only Governor expressing a willingness to serve as Chairman, 
was duly elected for the ensuing year and took the Chair.  
 
Election of Deputy Chairman 
Following the election for Chairman the Board proceeded to elect a Deputy 
Chairman in accordance with Standing Order No. 30. 
 
The Town Clerk read a list of those Governors eligible to stand and Roger 
Chadwick, being the only Governor expressing a willingness to serve as Deputy 
Chairman, was duly elected for the ensuing year. 
 
Appointment of the Bursary Committee and Sub Committees 
 
The Board proceeded to appoint their Bursary Committee, Academic and 
Education Sub-Committee and Finance, General Purpose and Estates Sub-
Committee for 2014/15. 
 
In accordance with Standing Order 27 1(a) the Board agreed to increase the 
number of Governors appointed to the Academic and Education Sub-
Committee from; the Chairman, Deputy Chairman and a maximum of 5 
Governors to the Chairman, Deputy Chairman and a maximum of 6 Governors, 
for the ensuing year.  
 
 
 

Page 2



RESOLVED – That,  
 

 Stuart Fraser be elected Chairman for the ensuing year.  

 Roger Chadwick be elected Deputy Chairman for the ensuing year. 

 The Bursary Committee be appointed as follows; 
 Chairman 
 Deputy Chairman 
 Deputy John Bennett  
 Vivienne Littlechild 
 Douglas Mobsby (external Member)  
 Philip Woodhouse 

 The Academic and Education Sub-Committee be appointed as follows; 
 Chairman  
 Deputy Chairman  
 Vivienne Littlechild 
 Brian Harris 
 Andrew Macmillan (external Member) 
 Sir Clive Martin (external Member) 
 Gillian Yarrow (external Member) 
 Councillor Chris Townsend (external Member) 

 The Finance, General Purpose and Estates Sub-Committee be appointed as 
follows; 

 Chairman  
 Deputy Chairman  
 Vivienne Littlechild  
 Brian Harris (external Member) 
 Douglas Mobsby (external Member)  
 Judith Pleasance  

 

9. EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC  
RESOLVED – That, under Section 100(A) of the Local Government Act 1972, 
the public be excluded from the meeting for the following items on the grounds 
that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in Part I 
of Section 12A if the Local Government Act. 
 
 Item No.     Exemption Paragraph(s) 
 10      1, 2 & 3 
 11      3 
 12      3 
 13      1 & 3 
 13a      1 & 3 
 13b      1 & 3 
 13c      1 & 3 
 13d      1 & 3 
 14      2 & 3 
 15      1, 2 & 3 
 15a      1. 2 & 3 
 15b      1, 2 & 3 
 15d      3 
 15e      3 
 16      1 & 2 
 17      3 

Page 3



10. NON-PUBLIC MINUTES  
The non-public minutes of the meeting held on 30 April 2014 were approved 
and agreed as an accurate record.  
 

11. NON PUBLIC MINUTES OF THE FINANCE, GENERAL PURPOSE AND 
ESTATES SUB COMMITTEE  
The non-public minutes of the Finance, General Purpose and Estates Sub-
Committee meeting on 22 May 2014 were received.  
 

12. NON PUBLIC MINUTES OF THE ACADEMIC AND EDUCATION SUB 
COMMITTEE  
The non-public minutes of the Academic and Education Sub-Committee 
meeting on 22 May 2014 were received.  
 

13. BURSAR'S REPORT  
The Board received a report of the Bursar of the City of London Freemen’s 
School relative to various matters including arrears of fees, development, risk 
and health and safety.  
 

14. REVIEW OF ASSISTANCE FOR FOUNDATION BURSARIES  
The Board considered a non-public report of the Chamberlain and the 
Headmaster of the City of London Freemen’s School reviewing the level of 
assistance given to recipients of Foundation Bursaries.  
 

15. HEADMASTER'S REPORT  
The Board received a report of the Headmaster of the City of London 
Freemen’s School relative to various issues including the School Roll, staffing 
and recent and forthcoming events. The Headmaster’s Report also contained 
the Annual Safeguarding Report for Governors and the Board approved the 
School’s Safeguarding Policy, which had been updated in the light of new 
guidance.   
 

16. HEAD OF JUNIOR SCHOOL REPORT  
The Board received a report of the Head of the City of London Freemen’s 
Junior School providing Governors with an overview of events in the Junior 
School since the last Board meeting.  
 

17. CITY OF LONDON FREEMEN'S SCHOOL MASTERPLAN  
The Board received a report of the Headmaster of the City of London 
Freemen’s School and the City Surveyor outlining details of the City of London 
Freemen’s School Masterplan. 
 

18. NON-PUBLIC QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF 
THE BOARD  
There were no questions relating to the work of the Board. 
 
 
 
 

Page 4



19. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT 
AND WHICH THE BOARD AGREES SHOULD BE CONSIDERED WHILST 
THE PUBLIC ARE EXCLUDED  
The Chairman discussed the size of the agenda and what information should 
be included as additional supplements for review. The Board also discussed 
the safeguarding training provision for Governors.  
 

 
 
The meeting ended at 12.52 pm 
 
 
 

 

Chairman 
 
 
 
Contact Officer: Georgina Denis 
tel. no.: 020 7332 1399 
Georgina.Denis@cityoflondon.gov.uk 
 

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 6



Committee(s): Date(s): 

 

Board of Governors City of London Freemen’s 

School 

7 October 2014 

 

Subject: Revenue Outturn 2013/14 Public 

Report of: The Chamberlain 

                   The Headmaster (CLFS) 

For Information 

 

 

Summary  

 

Total net income for 2013/14 was £1,647,000 compared to a budgeted 

position of £1,410,000 - representing an increase in net income of 

£237,000 (16.8%).  This better than budget position was mainly due to 

a reduction across various supplies and services expenditure headings, 

coupled with increases in income largely in relation to increased 

demand for facilities hire. 

 

The 2002 school funding guidelines report recommended that the 

General Reserve balance should not exceed 5% of the original estimate 

of fee income, equating to £608,000 for 2013/14, with any excess 

transferred to the Capital Reserve Fund.  In accordance with these 

guidelines the transfer to the Capital Reserve was £1,632,000.   

 

Including this transfer, the full balance on the Capital Reserve of 

£6,153,057 was applied on 31 March 2014, as planned, towards the 

funding of Phase 1 of the Masterplan.  An internal loan of £284,417 

has been provided by the City for the balance of funding required at 31 

March 2014.    

 

      Recommendations 

It is recommended that this revenue outturn report for 2013/14 is noted. 

 

Main Report 

      2013/14 Revenue Budget Position compared to Outturn 

 

1. Overall, net revenue income for 2013/14 was £1,647,000 compared to 

an agreed net income budget of £1,410,000, representing an increase in 

net income of £237,000.  The table below provides a detailed 

comparison between the budget and outturn.  Figures in brackets 

represent income, increases in income or reductions in expenditure. 

 
Page 7

Agenda Item 4



TABLE 1 

CITY OF LONDON FREEMEN’S SCHOOL 

Analysis of Service Expenditure 

 

Budget 

 

 

2013/14 

£’000 

Actual 

 

 

2013/14 

£’000 

Variation 

(Better)/ 

Worse 

2013/14 

£’000 

EXPENDITURE    

Employees 7,776 7,807                    31 
Premises Related Expenses (see note i) 1,566 1,543                  (23) 
Transport Related Expenses (see note ii) 79 72                   (7) 
Supplies & Services (see note iii) 1,974 1,834               (140) 
Staff Subsidy 

Headmaster’s Scholarship Awards 

Scholarship Subvention Awards 

Match Funding Awards 

270 

3 

480 

29 

267 

0 

480 

27 

                 (3) 

                 (3) 

- 

                  (2) 

Support Services (Annex A) 

Capital Charges (Annex A) 

771 

1,412 

790 

1,412 

                 19  

- 

Total Expenditure 14,360 14,232 (128) 

    

INCOME    

School Meals and Tuck Shop 

School tuition fees 

Other tuition fees 

Boarding fees 

Registration and Examination fees 

Other (see note iv) 

Interest 

City Support (Annex A) 

(384) 

(11,860) 

(236) 

(459) 

(149) 

          (176) 

           (50) 

(2,456) 

(384) 

(11,865) 

(233) 

(454) 

(145) 

          (263) 

           (67) 

(2,468) 

                  - 

                 (5) 

3  

5 

4 

(87) 

(17) 

(12) 

Total Income (15,770) (15,879) (109) 

    

TOTAL NET INCOME BEFORE 

TRANSFER TO CAPITAL RESERVE 
(1,410) (1,647) (237) 

    

Transfer To Capital Reserve 

 

TOTAL NET EXPENDITURE/ (INCOME) 

AFTER TRANSFER TO CAPITAL 

RESERVE 

             1,395 

 

                (15) 

            1,632 

 

              (15) 

237 

 

- 

 

BALANCE B/FWD 1 APRIL (593) (593) - 

BALANCE C/FWD 31 MARCH (608) (608) - 

 
Notes 

 

(i) Premises Related Expenses – includes energy costs, rates, water services, cleaning and 

domestic supplies and the contribution to the Repairs, Maintenance and Improvements 

Fund. 

 

(ii) Transport Related expenses include the contribution to the Vehicle 

Purchase/Replacement Fund. 

 

(iii) Supplies and Services – equipment, furniture, materials, books, uniforms, printing, 

stationary, professional fees, grants & subscriptions, advertising and the contribution 

to the Foundation Bursary Fund. 

 

(iv) Other income – hire of facilities, administration charges, freedom fees, and rent. 

 Page 8



 

2. The 2002 school funding guidelines report recommended that the 

General Reserve balance should not exceed 5% of the original estimate 

of fee income, equating to £608,000 for 2013/14, with any excess 

transferred to the Capital Reserve Fund.  In accordance with these 

guidelines the budget assumed a transfer to the Capital Reserve Fund of 

£1,395,000.  However, due to the school benefiting from additional net 

income of £237,000 during the year, the transfer to the Capital Reserve 

was increased to £1,632,000.   

Including this transfer, the full balance on the Capital Reserve of 

£6,153,057 was applied on 31 March 2014, as planned, towards the 

funding of Phase 1 of the Masterplan.  An internal loan of £284,417 has 

been provided by the City for the balance of funding required at 31 

March 2014.    

3. The main reasons for the variations summarised in Table 1, resulting in 

additional net income of £237,000, were:- 

A reduction in expenditure of £128,000 mainly due to:- 

i) lower than anticipated supplies and services expenditure of 

£140,000 including: 

 £56,000 from equipment, furniture and materials, including an 

underspend of £29,000 on Junior School play equipment that 

was not required as the grounds around the new Music School 

were not completed in time to purchase the equipment in the 

2013/14 financial year; a number of smaller underspends 

totalling £22,000 across numerous departments as repairs and 

replacements were not required; and £5,000 on equipment 

maintenance and the hire of equipment due to the careful 

management of resources; 

 £27,000 from communications and computing following delays 

to the new Music School coupled with changes to hardware 

requirements, for example, the provision of innovative 

interactive whiteboards; 

 £24,000 from printing and stationery due to greater use of the 

School’s website and a reduced requirement for paper based 

materials; and 

 £21,000 from books as a consequence of greater use of 

Information Technology as teaching methodologies change; 

ii)   premises expenses being £23,000 below budget primarily as a 

result of lower fuel costs; partly offset by 

Page 9



 

iii)   an increase in employee expenses of £31,000 principally due to 

additional temporary staff costs of £14,000 to cover long-term 

sickness absence; the appointment of a new post as Personal 

Secretary to the Deputy Head from December 2013 at £10,000 

(part year); and the replacement of the Senior School 

Secretary/Receptionist following a period of illness from January 

2014 at £5,000 (part year). 

Additional income of £109,000, the main elements of which were 

increased facilities hire of £66,000 primarily relating to lettings during 

the summer recess; an additional £6,000 from freedom fees for 

Foundation Bursaries, which is offset by a corresponding increase in 

the contribution to the Foundation Bursary Fund; £5,000 from Teachers 

of English to Speakers of Other Languages (TESOL) tuition following 

an increase in the number of overseas students taking English lessons; 

and increases in interest earnings and City of London Support of 

£17,000 and £12,000 respectively. 

4. As requested by Governors, Annex C compares the budget and outturn 

with the brackets convention reversed to accord with the practice 

generally adopted in the private sector. 

Unrestricted, Designated and Restricted Funds 

5. A summary of unrestricted, designated and restricted funds showing 

the movements in 2013/14 is attached at Annex B.  As planned, total 

funds have decreased - from £8,027,445 to £3,680,718.   

The main reason for the reduction is the planned application of the full 

balance on the capital reserve towards the funding of Phase 1 of the 

Masterplan.  This funding totalled £6,153,057 and comprised: 

 the balance of £4,467,478 brought forward at 1 April 2014 

(included within the £8,027,445 above); 

 the £1,631,922 transferred to the reserve for the year; and 

 interest earnings of £53,657. 

       An internal loan of £284,417 has been provided by the City for the 

balance of funding required for the Masterplan at 31 March 2014. 

6. Two new funds were established during the year as follows:-  

i) the Ashtead Park Swimming Club, which had an overdrawn 

balance of £552 as at 31 March 2014.  This was set up prior 

to the Pool fire in January 2014 to establish a swimming club 

on-site in collaboration with Guildford Swimming Club, and  
Page 10



ii) a Charitable Donations Fund, which had a balance of £9,226 

as at 31 March 2014.  This was established in order to collect 

monies raised by pupils for charity, and subsequently 

arrange for payments to be made to the specified charities.  

 

 

Contacts: 

Steve Telling, Chief Accountant 

Steve.telling@cityoflondon.gov.uk 

 

Sue Williams, Bursar 

sue.williams@cityoflondon.gov.uk 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 11

mailto:Steve.telling@cityoflondon.gov.uk
mailto:sue.williams@cityoflondon.gov.uk


Annex A 

 SUPPORT SERVICES AND CAPITAL CHARGES 

AND 

CITY SUPPORT  

 
  

 

 
Budget 

 

 

2013/14 

£’000 

Actual 

 

 

2013/14 

£’000 

Variation 

Increase/ 

(Decrease) 

2013/14 

£’000 

Support Services and Capital Charges 

Information Systems (IS) 

Staff Insurance 

Other Insurance 

Chamberlain 

Comptroller & City Solicitor 

Town Clerk 

City Surveyor 

Miscellaneous - see note i 

Corporate & Democratic Core (CDC)   

City of London Procurement Service 

City Surveyor’s Employee Recharge 

Capital Financing Costs 

 

137 

48 

55 

213 

13 

112 

39 

21 

44 

24 

65 

1,412 

 

145 

51 

54 

213 

13 

112 

39 

21 

47 

24 

71 

1,412 

 

  8 

          3 

(1) 

-  

- 

- 

-  

-  

3 

- 

6 

- 

TOTAL SUPPORT SERVICES AND 

CAPITAL CHARGES 

 

2,183 

 

2,202 

 

     19 

 

 

 

 

City Support 

Scholarships 
     General - see note ii 

     2.5% Match Funding - see note iii 

Total Scholarships 

 

Support Services and Capital Charges 

   Information Systems 

   Staff Insurance 

   Support Services 

   Capital Financing Costs 

Total Support Services and Capital Charges 

 

Other 

   Listed Building Subvention 

   PP2P savings -  see note iv 

Total Other 

 

 

(480) 

(29) 

(509) 

 

 

(137) 

(48) 

(466)       

(1,387) 

(2,038) 

 

 

(47) 

138 

91 

 

 

(480) 

(27) 

(507) 
 

 

(145) 

(51) 

(469) 

 (1,387) 

(2,052) 
 

 

(47) 

138 

91 

 

 

- 

2 

2 

 

 

(8) 

(3) 

(3) 

- 

(14) 

 

 

- 

-  

- 

TOTAL CITY SUPPORT  (2,456) (2,468) (12) 

Page 12



Annex A 

 SUPPORT SERVICES AND CAPITAL CHARGES 

AND 

CITY SUPPORT  

Notes: 

i)       Various services including corporate training, corporate printing, occupational 

health, union costs and environmental and sustainability sections. 

 

ii)       City’s Cash finances the equivalent of 34 full fee scholarships per annum – 6 full 

fee equivalent (FFE) in the junior school, 2 FFE in years 7 and 8 and 26 FFE in 

the Senior School. 

 

iii)       The funding guidelines, as agreed by Policy & Resources Committee on 19 

September 2002, provided for the City to match fund external bursary funds raised 

from that date onwards up to a cap of 2.5% of tuition fee income. 

 

iv)       As a result of new contracts procured by the City’s PP2P Team, expenditure by 

City Schools should generally be reduced.  However, as agreed by the Chief 

Officers’ Group in January 2012, such savings are to benefit the City Corporation 

centrally to help achieve balanced revenue budgets on City’s Cash over the 

medium term.  In order to move these savings from the Schools to the centre, an 

adjustment has been made to the City’s support to the Schools.  This will leave the 

Schools in a neutral resource position as the reduction in costs from the PP2P 

savings will be offset by a reduction in income through the City’s Support.  

Should a contract procured by the PP2P Team result in an increase in a School’s 

costs then a compensatory increase will be made to the City’s support to retain the 

neutrality principle. 

 

 

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 14



Annex B

Balance 

1st April 

2013

Interest Income Expenditure

Transfer 

Between 

Funds

Balance 31st 

March 

2014

Unrestricted

Revenue Surplus (592,666) (66,755) (15,812,037) 13,725,596 -               (2,745,862)

Repairs & Maintenance - - - - 483,000 483,000

Vehicle Replacement - - - - 23,000 23,000

Capital Reserve Fund - - - - 1,631,922 1,631,922

(592,666) (66,755) (15,812,037) 13,725,596 2,137,922 (607,940)

Designated

Drama Refurbishment Fund (596) (7) -               -               -               (603)

Music Refurbishment Fund (7,375) (87) (2,530) -               -               (9,992)

Foundation Scholars Fund (58,795) (531) (51,366) 46,311 -               (64,381)

General Scholarship Fund (173,305) (2,011) (480,000) 482,021 -               (173,295)

Repairs & Maintenance (2,064,198) (23,491) -               444,223 (483,000) (2,126,466)

I/T (54) -               -               -               -               (54)

Retirement (68,659) (796) -               -               -               (69,455)

Vehicle Purchase/Replacement Fund (7,863) (122) -               -               (23,000) (30,985)

Junior School (4,564) (58) (7,423) 8,433 -               (3,612)

Capital Reserve (4,467,478) (53,657) -               6,153,057 (1,631,922) -               

Headmaster's Fund Raising (1,289)          (15)               -               -               -               (1,304)

Projects/Events (54,667)        (643)             -               -               -               (55,310)

School Committee Funds (3,570)          (44)               (800) -               -               (4,414)

CLFS Development Fund (14,094)        (180)             (9,325) 12,017         -               (11,582)

School Fund (9,814) (100) (3,000) 8,373 -               (4,541)

Ashtead Park Swimming Club -               -               (2,893) 3,445 -               552

Charitable Donations -               (4) (9,222) -               -               (9,226)

(6,936,321) (81,746) (566,559) 7,157,880 (2,137,922)   (2,564,668)

Restricted

Livery Match Funding (161,135) (1,763) (26,793) 16,044 -               (173,647)

Livery scholarships & Prizes (56,374) -               (29,638) 32,498 -               (53,514)

(217,509)      (1,763)          (56,431)        48,542         -                   (227,161)

Endowment

2-18 St Brides (250,250)      -                   -                   -                   -                   (250,250)

Sale of land & property (30,699) -                   -                   -                   -                   (30,699)

(280,949) - - - - (280,949)

Totals (8,027,445) (150,264)      (16,435,027) 20,932,018 -                   (3,680,718)   

City of London Freemen's School

2013/14 Movement of Funds

Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 16



CITY OF LONDON FREEMEN'S SCHOOL

COMPARISON OF 2013/14 REVENUE OUTTURN WITH BUDGET

Figures in brackets represent expenditure, increases in expenditure or reductions in income

Annex C

Budget  Actual Variance

INCOME £000 £000 £000

Fees & Charges (Customer and Client Receipts) 13,088 13,081 (7)

Investment Income 50 67 17 

Other Income 176 263 87 

City Corporation Support 2,456 2,468 12 

Total Income 15,770 15,879 109 

EXPENDITURE

Employee Expenses (7,776) (7,807) (31)

Premises Related Expenses (1,083) (1,060) 23 

Transport Related Expenses (56) (49) 7 

Supplies and Services (1,974) (1,834) 140 

Staff subsidy and scholarships (782) (774) 8 

Support Services (771) (790) (19)

Capital Charges (1,412) (1,412) 0 

Total Expenditure (13,854) (13,726) 128 

TRANSFERS

Transfer to Repairs and Maintenance Fund (483) (483) 0 

Transfer to Vehicle Replacement Fund (23) (23) 0 

Transfer to the Capital Reserve (1,395) (1,632) (237)

Total Transfers (1,901) (2,138) (237)

NET INCOME 15 15 0 

Page 17



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 18



Committee(s): Date(s): 

Board of Governors City of London Freemen’s School  7 October 2014 

Subject: 

Charities Administered in connection with (ICW) The 

City of London Freemen’s School - 2013/14 Report 

and Financial Statements 

Public 

 

Report of: 

The Chamberlain 

For Decision 

 

 

This report provides Governors with a copy of the 2013/14 Report 

and Financial Statements for the Charities Administered in connection 

with (ICW) The City of London Freemen’s School (charity number: 

312120), and to consider whether any cash should be invested in the 

City of London Charities Pool. 

During the year ended 31 March 2014 total funds increased by £9,238 

to £161,146 (2012/13: total funds increased by £13,291 to £151,908).  

This £9,238 comprised the following:- 

i) voluntary income of £6,245 (2012/13: £6,410);  

ii) a net gain on investments of £6,130 (2012/13: a net gain of 

£10,409);  

iii) investment income of £4,275 (2012/13: £3,922); offset by 

iv) expenditure of £7,412 (2012/13: £7,450) relating to 247 book 

prizes (2012/13: 257 book prizes). 

 

The cash balance held as at 31 March 2014 was £71,394 (2012/13: 

£68,286), and expenditure from this fund over the previous three 

years has averaged £7,361 per annum.  Therefore, to provide an 

opportunity to earn potentially higher returns than interest on cash 

balances (1.16% for 2013/14 and estimated to be 0.75% in the current 

year), Governors are requested to consider investing part of this cash 

in the City of London Charities Pool.   

 

The investments in the Charities Pool are managed by Artemis 

Investment Management Limited and in the year ended 31 December  

2013 achieved a total return of 24.2% (31 December 2012: 13.3%), 

which was a relative outperformance of 6.9% (31 December 2012: 

1.6%) compared to its benchmark, the WM Unconstrained Charity 

Universe.  A total of 30.5p (3.9%) per unit was distributed during the 

year (2012/13: 23.6p (3.3%)).   

 

 

 
Page 19

Agenda Item 5



Recommendations 

It is recommended that Members receive the annual report and 

financial statements for information and consider whether to invest 

part of the cash balance in the City of London Charities Pool.  

 

 

 

 

 

Contact:   

Steve Telling, Chief Accountant 

steve.telling@cityoflondon.gov.uk 

 

Page 20

mailto:steve.telling@cityoflondon.gov.uk


Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



Page 36



Committee(s): Date(s): 

Board of Governors City of London Freemen’s School  7 October 2014 

Subject: 

City of London Freemen’s School Bursary Fund - 

2013/14 Report and Financial Statements 

Public 

 

Report of: 

The Chamberlain 

For Decision 

 

 

This report provides Governors with a copy of the 2013/14 Report 

and Financial Statements for the City of London Freemen’s School 

Bursary Fund (charity number: 284769), and to consider whether any 

cash should be invested in the City of London Charities Pool.   

During the year ended 31 March 2014 total funds increased by 

£65,704 to £742,299 (2012/13: total funds increased by £74,237 to 

£676,595).  This £65,704 comprised the following:- 

i) a net gain on investments of £36,205 (2012/13: a net gain of 

£55,669);  

ii) voluntary income of £25,659 (2012/13: £23);  

iii) investment income of £23,356 (2012/13: £18,769); offset by 

iv) expenditure of £19,516 (2012/13: £224) comprising two bursary 

awards amounting to £19,068 (2012/13: no bursary awards) and 

bursary administration costs of £448 (2012/13: £224). 

 

The cash balance held as at 31 March 2014 was £135,856 (2012/13: 

£229,390), and expenditure from this fund over the previous three 

years has averaged £9,378 per annum.  Therefore, to provide an 

opportunity to earn potentially higher returns than interest on cash 

balances (1.16% for 2013/14 and estimated to be 0.75% in the current 

year), Governors are requested to consider investing part of this cash 

in the City of London Charities Pool.   

 

The investments in the Charities Pool are managed by Artemis 

Investment Management Limited and in the year ended 31 December  

2013 achieved a total return of 24.2% (31 December 2012: 13.3%), 

which was a relative outperformance of 6.9% (31 December 2012: 

1.6%) compared to its benchmark, the WM Unconstrained Charity 

Universe.  A total of 30.5p (3.9%) per unit was distributed during the 

year (2012/13: 23.6p (3.3%)).   

 

 

Page 37

Agenda Item 6



Recommendations 

It is recommended that Members receive the annual report and 

financial statements for information and consider whether to invest 

part of the cash balance in the City of London Charities Pool.  

 

 

 

Contact:   

Steve Telling, Chief Accountant 

steve.telling@cityoflondon.gov.uk 

 

  

Page 38

mailto:steve.telling@cityoflondon.gov.uk


Page 39



Page 40



Page 41



Page 42



Page 43



Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



Page 47



Page 48



Page 49



Page 50



Page 51



Page 52



Page 53



Page 54



Document is Restricted

Page 55

Agenda Item 10
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 61

Agenda Item 13
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 67

Agenda Item 14
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 71

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 75

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 79

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 85

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 87

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 89

Agenda Item 15
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 97

Agenda Item 16
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 107

Agenda Item 17
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	4 Revenue Outturn 2013/14
	Revenue Outturn 2013-14.doc ANNEX 1
	Revenue Outturn 2013-14.doc ANNEX 2

	5 Charities Administered in connection with (ICW) the City of London Freemen's School - 2013/14 - Report and Financial Statements
	Charities ICW APPX

	6 City of London Freemen's School Bursary Fund - 2013/14 Report and Financial Statements
	BURSARY FUND APPENDIX

	10 Non-Public Minutes
	13 Service Based Review Proposals - City of London Freemen's School
	14 Headmaster's Report
	Headmaster's Report APx 1
	Headmaster's Report APx 2
	Headmaster's Report APx 3
	Headmaster's Report APx 4
	Headmaster's Report APx 5

	15 Head of Junior School Report
	16 Bursar's Report
	17 Report of Action Taken Between Meetings

